FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT 2000/ENVIRONMENTAL INFORMATION REGULATIONS 2004 
Your request for information has now been considered and the Council’s response to your questions is shown below.

You asked:
General

1.Can you confirm who is the member of staff at Leicester City Council (“LCC”) appointed as property manager for the freehold of Phoenix Square Apartments. Please provide their full name, email and contact phone number

Junior staff names below that of Head of Service are exempt from release under Section 40(2) of The Act as they are personal data. The Council judges that this personal data is being processed for the purposes of employment and that disclosure to the wider world under the Act would constitute a breach of Data Protection principles, notably Principle 1– fair, lawful and transparent processing and Principle 2 – processing for specified and not incompatible purposes. Therefore, this Information is exempt from release.
2.We understand you have invoiced Metro PM at the beginning of the year for the recharge costs as set out in the attached budget. Can you confirm if you have received payment of this invoice from Metro PM.
3.Can you provide a copy of all written communication between Metro PM and Leicester City Council from 01/01/2024 to current date in relation to Phoenix Square. This is to include (but not exclusively to) any exchange of communication in relation to service charge budget, charges and proposals.

4.Can you please provide a schedule of how the service charges are apportioned in relation to the residential and commercial owners?

5.Can you also advise how this was calculated when implemented?

Fire Alarm and Maintenance Testing

6.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 212% year on year.

7.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

8.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

9.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

10.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

CCTV Maintenance

11.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 97% year on year.

12.Are these costs maintenance or repairs?

13.If both, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

14.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

15.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

16.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

17.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

18.What areas does the CCTV cover within the residential element of the building & how many cameras are within this scope?

19.Who has access to the camera feeds, is footage recorded and for what purpose is it used?

Electrical System

20.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 3472% year on year.

21.Can you clarify what this actually comprises of, the location and use of the system?

22.What is this budgetary amount for, and how has it been calculated?

23.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

24.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

25.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

Air Handling Unit

26.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 716% year on year.

27.Can you clarify what this actually is, the location and use of the unit?

28.What is this budgetary amount for, and how has it been calculated?

29.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

30.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

31.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

Water Testing

32.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 231% year on year.

33.Can you clarify what this actually is, the reason for the testing, frequency and cost per visit?

34.What is this budgetary amount for, and how has it been calculated?

35.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

36.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

37.How is this testing different to the legionnaires water testing cost also provided for in the budget?

Water Systems

38.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 137% year on year.

39.Are these costs maintenance or repairs?

40.If both, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

41.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

42.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into

43.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

Gas Boiler Repair

44.What purpose does the gas boiler currently serve?

45.Can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 3457% year on year.

46.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

47.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

48.Can you clarify how has the budget figure has been calculated?

49.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

50.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

Heating System

51.What heating system is this, where does it heat?

52.Can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 282% year on year.

53.Are these costs maintenance or repairs?

54.If both, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

55.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

56.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

57.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

Communal Lighting

58.Can you confirm this only relates to the communal lighting used exclusively by the residential element of the building.

59.Can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 1221% year on year.

60.Are these costs electricity, maintenance or repairs?

61.If more than one, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

62.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

63.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

64.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

65.What is the last years usage of electricity, unit cost, and standing charge and how does this years budget compare to that?

Vehicle Ramp Access

66.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 2192% year on year.

67.Are these costs maintenance or repairs?

68.If both, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

69.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

70.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

71.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

72.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 740% year on year.

73.Are these costs maintenance or repairs?

74.If both, can you indicate what the apportionment is and how has the budget figure has been calculated?

75.What repairs have been identified as being required, when were they identified and by whom?

76.If quotes have been obtained, please provide copies

77.Is there a regular maintenance contract? If so, please provide a copy, confirm what is the status of that contract and what length of term has been entered into?

78.What is the status of any repairs identified? Have any works so far?

Concierge & Caretaking

79.Can you please clarify what this charge is for and the scope of works, who carries out this role

80.Who is the service provided by & how is the cost calculated

81.Why is this only charged to the residential element of the scheme and not the commercial

Insurance

82.Please can you provide an explanation and further details as to the reason this cost is increasing 89% year on year

83.Is the insurance procured through a broker and if so, can you identify who the broker is?

84.Have quotes been obtained from more than one insurer for like for like cover? If so, please provide copies?

85.Can you confirm if LCC or its subsidiaries receive any commission or payment from the broker or insurer for obtaining insurance through them?

Other

Response to questions 2 to 85
The Council is the Freehold owner. The Leaseholder is Adriatics and their Managing Agent is Metro PM.

The Council manages only the headleases for Phoenix Square. These requests for information relate to the residential subleases and should be addressed directly to Metro PM, who act as managing agents for Adriatic (the headlease of the residential units).

The Council holds information in relation to the service charges that it applies to Adriatics via Metro. However, applies an exemption to all information held in relation to these service charges under s43 FOIA (commercial interests) which states: 

(2) Information is exempt information if its disclosure under this Act would, or would be likely to, prejudice the commercial interests of any person (including the public authority holding it).

The information held in relation to this request is commercially sensitive, both in relation to the Council and the other organisations involved. The correspondence relates to the service charges for the property and disclosure of this information would prejudice the Council’s ability to act commercially in relation to this relationship and other relationships where the Council is a commercial landlord. 

This is a qualified exemption and is therefore subject to the Public Interest Test. The Council acknowledges that there is limited public interest in the financial arrangements. However, in these circumstances the Council is acting as a commercial landlord for the property and there is a strong public interest in the Council being able to act commercially and achieve the best value for its properties. That would be at risk should this information be disclosed into the public arena. Further, the relationships between the various parties involved in this property arrangement is complex and to disclose the commercial arrangements between the Council and Adriatics may further complicate those dynamics rather than simplify any existing arrangements.  The Council therefore considers that the public interest in the Council being able to maintain its commercial interests in any commercial properties far outweigh the need for complete transparency as to financial transactions. 

As such, the Council considers the public interest falls in favour of maintaining the exemption.

The Council does not hold any information in relation to the service charges that Adriatics applies to their tenants. As such, these requests should be addressed to Adriatcis via Metro PM, as they are responsible for issuing service charge demands to the individual tenants.

In your correspondence dated 16th September 2025 you make reference to a direct legal right to access this information under the Landlord and Tenant Act 1985, sections 21 and 22, which require landlords to provide leaseholders with accounts and supporting documents relating to the management of the building and service charges. If you consider the information is available to you via this route you should pursue the same via your Landlord. Please note that the Council is not your Landlord in these arrangements. 

86.With regard to the hot water and heating provided to my property by the communal system, can you please confirm;

a.How is this metered and billed in relation to my flat

b.Can you provide meter readings for the last 5 years

c.My understanding is that some of the above proposed budget charges relate to the repair of the metering system as it doesn’t currently work. If it does not work, can you advise for how long it has not worked, when this was identified and by whom?

d.Can you also confirm if, once it was identified, leaseholders were no longer asked to contribute towards these services as it was not possible to accurately bill the usage?
Where information is requested for disclosure to the wider world (which is how any disclosure made under the FOI Act must be considered) a consideration must be made as to whether this would breach Data Protection Principles.

If held this information can only be released if to do so would not contravene any of the principles set out in Article 5(1) of the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR).

Disclosure to the wider world would constitute a breach of Data Protection principles, notably Principle 1-fair, lawful and transparent processing and Principle 2 – processing for specified and not incompatible purposes. Therefore, this Information is exempt from release under Section 40(2) of The FOI Act as this information constitutes personal data.

You may re-use the information under an Open Government Licence.
If you are dissatisfied with the handling of your request, please write, explaining your grounds of appeal, to: 

Internal Review

Information Governance & Risk
Email: info.requests@leicester.gov.uk
